
Bear Valley Water District ▪ 441 Creekside Drive ▪ P.O. Box 5027 ▪ Bear Valley, CA 95223 ▪ Phone: (209) 753 - 2112 

DECLARATION OF A QUORUM 

James Bissell, President - Stefaniya Becking, Vice President - John Boyle, Treasurer - Ken Brown, Secretary Gunnar 
Thordarson, Member 

BOARD MEETING

Public comments on agenda items will be limited to 3 minutes or otherwise at the discretion of the Board Chair. 

PUBLIC FORUM 

Any member of the public may address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the 
Board’s jurisdiction provided the matter is not on the agenda or pending before the Board. 

BOARD BUSINESS 

1. Public Hearing – Introduce, Waive the Reading of and Adopt Ordinance No. 74 Amending Article II of 
Ordinance No. 1 Increasing Rates and Charges for Sewage Disposal Service Using CPI-U Index

2. The Board will consider adoption of the July 22, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes

3. Resolution No. 497 - Adopting Revised District By-Laws – Discussion and Possible Action Item

4. Resolution No. 498 - SDRMA Amendment of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and Resolution 
Authorizing Participation in the SDRMA Health Benefits Program - Discussion and Possible Action Item

5. Manager’s Report  –  General Manager

6. Financial Report  –  General Manager

6.1 P&L and Balance Sheet Reports - Discussion and Possible Action Item
6.2 Accounts Payable Report - Discussion and Possible Action Item
6.3 A/R & Aging Reports – Discussion
6.4 FY 2018-19 Audit - Discussion and Possible Action Item

7. Resolution No. 499 - Adopting District Credit Card Policy – Discussion and Possible Action Item

8. Board Member Reports 

Materials related to any item on this Agenda are available for public inspection in the District Office at 441 Creekside Drive, Bear Valley, 
CA 95223 during normal business hours.  Information on materials in the agenda is also available on the Bear Valley Water District 
website at http://www.bvwd.ca.gov, subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting.  Any material provided to the 
legislative body at the meeting by agency staff or a member of the legislative body will be available at the public meeting, documents 
provided by others will be available right after the meeting. 

This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42USC, #12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act, CA Government Code # 54954.2. 

Any persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact Judi 
Silber at 209-753-2112, during regular business hours, at least 72 hours prior to the meetings.  



































 

 

Bear Valley Water District ▪ 441 Creekside Drive ▪ P.O. Box 5027 ▪ Bear Valley, CA 95223 ▪ Phone: (209) 753 - 2112 
 
 

                 LOCATION 2: 546 LUCILLE DRIVE, INCLINE VILLAGE, NV, 89451 
 

 
BOARD MEETING 

 
 
DECLARATION OF A QUORUM 
 
President James Bissell called the meeting to order at 9:10 A.M.  Directors present were Stefaniya 
Becking, Vice President, John Boyle, Treasurer, and Gunnar Thordarson, Director, via teleconference.  
Staff present were Jeff Gouveia, General Manager and Judi Silber, Office Manager.  No public 
present. 
 

Public comments on agenda items will be limited to 3 minutes or otherwise at the discretion of the Board Chair. 
 

PUBLIC FORUM 
 
Any member of the public may address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the 
Board’s jurisdiction provided the matter is not on the agenda or pending before the Board. 
 
 
BOARD BUSINESS 

 
1. Public Hearing – Proposed Delinquent Sewer Service Fees to Be Added to 2019-20 Alpine County Tax    

                             Rolls - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 
The Public Hearing was opened at 9:14 A.M. 
 
Motion Boyle Second Becking to send the presented list of delinquent account to the FY19-20 
Alpine County Tax Roll. 
 
AYES:  Bissell, Becking, Boyle, Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Brown 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Public Hearing was closed at 9:15 A.M. 
 

 
2. The Board will consider adoption of the May 20, 2019 Board Meeting minutes 
  
 Motion Boyle Second Bissell to accept the May 20, 2019 Minutes as presented. 
  
 AYES:  Bissell, Becking, Boyle, Thordarson 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT:  Brown 
 

 
 



     Bear Valley Water District Agenda 
 Monday, June 22, 2019 

  2 

 
 
 
3. Review Draft Revised District By-Laws – Discussion and Possible Action Item 

 
Legal Counsel Dan Schroeder joined the meeting via teleconference.  He recommended that the 
Board adopt the revised by-laws at this meeting and then forward them to Alpine County Board of 
Supervisors to add as a consent item on their calendar at their next meeting.  After the Alpine  
County Board of Supervisors approves them, then the Board of Directors can adopt them via a 
Resolution.  Dan advised that the 2010 bylaws were unnecessarily detailed, overly complicated and 
potentially created exposure for its Staff as well as its Trustees based on a myriad of sections as they 
had been prepared.  Dan further advised that at any time in the future the Board can add sections 
to the by-laws it deems necessary by way of Resolution.   
 
Motion Boyle Second Becking to approve the by-laws as revised and to send them to the Alpine 
County Board of Supervisors for approval. 
 
AYES:  Bissell, Becking, Boyle, Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Brown 
MOTION CARRIED 
  
 

4. Bear Valley Water District Wastewater Treatment Pond Improvement Project – Update 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the total cost of improvement project.  The Board felt compelled to 
make it very clear to the contractor that they are approving a total not to exceed $240K for the 
completion of this project.  Any further expenditures would have to be approved by an Ad Hoc 
Commitee by a 2/3’s vote. 
 
Motion Bissell Second Becking to approve a revised budget up to $240K, with Ad Hoc Committee 
flexibility to increase additional $50K if necessary. 
 
AYES:  Bissell, Becking, Boyle, Thordarson 
NOES:   
ABSENT:  Brown 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

5. FY 19 - 20 Final Budget Proposal – Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 
GM Gouveia informed the Board of the FY19-20 final proposed budget shortfall.  Residential 
income was estimated to remain the same next fiscal year.  However, due to structural damage 
incurred last winter for some of the District’s commercial customers, the District is anticipating losses 
in commercial revenue as these buildings remain unoccupied.   Further, the USFS notified the 
District that they will be removing all (7) flush toilets at the east end of Lake Alpine. The Board 
discussed the projected reductions in net income and cash flow and engaged in a discussion 
surrounding the use of the CPI index to increase revenue in future fiscal cycles.  The Board 
considered that a CPI increase may enable the District to delay any new rate Prop 218 increase for 
a number of years by taking advantage of the CPI.   

 
Motion Becking Second Boyle to accept the FY19-20 Final Budget as Proposed 
 
AYES:  Bissell, Becking, Boyle, Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Brown 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



     Bear Valley Water District Agenda 
 Monday, June 22, 2019 

  2 

 
 
 
 
Motion Boyle Second Becking to authorize the implementation of the CPI Increase effective January 1, 
2020 subject to an increase of at least 1 %. 
 
AYES:  Bissell, Becking, Boyle, Thordarson 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Brown 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
6. Manager’s Report  –  General Manager 

 
See attachment. 
 
 

7. Financial Report  –  General Manager 
 

7.1 P&L and Balance Sheet Reports - Discussion and Possible Action Item 
 

No action taken.  For review only. 
 

7.2 Accounts Payable Report - Discussion and Possible Action Item  
 

No action taken.  For review only. 
 

7.3 A/R & Aging Reports – Discussion 
 

 No action taken.  For review only. 
 
 

8. Board Member Reports 
 
 The next board meeting was set for Monday, October 21st, 2019 at 9:00 A.M. 
 
 President Bissell adjourned the meeting at 11:55 A.M. 
 

 



 

AGENDA ITEM 
DATE:  JULY 22, 2019 
TO:  BVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM:  JEFF GOUVEIA, DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER 
RE:  MANAGER’S REPORT 

__________________________________________________________________ 

1. Collections, Treatment & Disposal Operations - Update 

a. Flows - Influent Flows & Pond Transfers 

The influent flows for July 1 – 17 was 1.185 MG. 

a. Volumes - Storage, Capacity & Disposal 

Volume of water moved from treatment to storage July 1-17 was 2.023 MG. 

2. Permit Compliance & Monitoring & Reporting Programs (MRPs) - Update 

a. WDR MRP - Land Discharge Permit – Compliance & Reporting Update 

i. Reporting Status Matrix – All Monthly Reporting Submitted On-Time 

b. NPDES MRP – Surface Water Discharge Permit – Compliance & Reporting Update 

i. Reporting Status Matrix – All Monthly Reporting Submitted On-Time 

3. Other 

a. NPDES August 30, 2018 Permit Amendment Request – Update 

  GM received an email from Danielle Goode stating that she is working alongside Dania 

  Jimmerson, CVRWQCB, on an amendment to the District’s NPDES permit reducing effluent 

   monitoring on once/week for certain Parameters and removing receiving water monitoring 

  requirements when there is no flow in Bloods Creek.  

b. USFS – Chickaree Campground Vault Toilet Installation Project 

Timothy Hughes sent an email on June 13th stating that the USFS is replacing the 7 flushing 

Toilets at Chickaree with vault toilets.  Once complete the lift station at Chickaree will 

no longer be required. 

c. DSOD Dam Break Analysis / Inundation Mapping – Notice of Receipt & Review of Inundation Maps 

In response to the requirements of Division 3, Part 1, Chapter 4, section 6161(a) of the California 

Water Code, the District has submitted the inundation map for Bear Valley SH Dam.  Ariya 

Balakrishnan, Chief will notify the District when our inundation map has been reviewed.   

 

 

 



 
 

 

d. CASA Memo on Garamendi Legislation to Extend NPDES Permit Terms to 10 Years 

  Congressman John Garamendi introduced legislation to address extending NPDES permit 

   terms for a fixed period of up to 10 years.  CASA strongly advocates this extension.  

e. LAFCO Representation – Alpine County Special Districts 

  Dane Wadle, CPFO, the field coordinator for the California Special Districts Association (CSDA), 

  emailed GM Gouveia, to reach out and setup a conference call between the three agencies in  

  Alpine County, to get representation on the Alpine County Local Agency Formation 

  Commission (LAFCO). As a condition of getting representation, the districts must pay a portion 

  of the LAFCO budget.     

f. Director’s Terms of Office – Update 

  Ken Brown and Gunnar Thordarson’s terms of office both expire this year.  The vacancies have  

  been posted at the required locations and election packets were available at the District 

  office.  Both incumbents agreed to serve another term of office.  No other candidates 

  applied.  The new incumbents will be sworn in at the next board meeting. 

 







497







 

 
 
1063903‐1 

 

 
 

BYLAWS 
 

OF THE 
 

BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted July  __, 2019



 

1 
 
1063903‐1 

ARTICLE I 
GENERAL 

 

Section 1.  Name. 

This water sanitary district shall be known as the BEAR VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
(BVWD or District). 

Section 2.  District Office. 

The District Office shall be established by Resolution and may be changed from time to 
time by Resolution. 

 

ARTICLE II 
PURPOSE 

 
 The purpose of the BVWD is to provide services to the residents of Bear Valley 
consistent with the Division 13 of the California Water Code.   
 
 

ARTICLE III 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 Section 1.  Number.  
 

The governing body of BVWD shall consist of five (5) elected Directors, each of whom 
shall serve a term of four (4) years.  Such terms of office to be established on a staggered basis.  
During elections every two (2) years, either two (2) or three (3) Directors are elected for the next 
four (4) years. 

 
Section 2.  Qualifications.  
 
In accordance with Water Code section 34700, each Director shall be one of the 

following: 
 
(a) A holder of title to land within the BVWD. 
(b) The legal representative of a holder of title to land within BVWD in accordance 

with Water Code section 34030. 
(c) A representative designated by a holder of title to land within BVWD, if the 

holder has filed with BVWD written evidence of that designation. 
  



 

2 
 
1063903‐1 

 Section 3.  Responsibility. 
 
 The Board of Directors shall govern the BVWD and establish policies for the operation 
of the District.  The Directors shall carry out their duties as set forth in law, these bylaws, and 
other policies of BVWD honestly and faithfully. 
 
 Section 4.  Compensation. 
 
 Members of the Board of Directors shall receive compensation for each day’s attendance 
at meeting of the Board or for each day’s service rendered as a director by request of the Board 
in an amount established by resolution of the Board of Directions, but in no case may the amount 
exceed the amount set forth in Water Code section 34741.  Nor shall the total compensation to 
any Director exceed the total of six days in any calendar month, together with any expenses 
authorized by the Board.    Compensation for all other officers who are not members of the 
Board of Directors shall be established by the Board. 
 
 Section 5.  Vacancies. 
 
 Vacancies on the Board shall be filled in accordance with Government Code Section 
1780.   
 

Section 6.  Resignation. 
 
 A director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, to the President, 
or to the Secretary of the Board.  Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt 
of such notice or at any later time specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the 
acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
OFFICERS 

 
 Section 1.  Elected Officers. 
 
 The elected officers shall be chosen by the Board from among the five (5) members of 
the Board and shall consist of a President and a Vice-President. 
 
 Section 2.  Terms of Elected Officer. 
 
 Elected Officers of the Board shall be elected by the Board at its first meeting in a new 
calendar year and shall serve for one (1) year, said term to commence upon election.  All elected 
officers shall be eligible to serve successive terms.  Officers shall continue to serve in their 
capacity as an officer until their successor is elected. 
 
  



 

3 
 
1063903‐1 

 Section 3.  Duties of Elected Officers. 
 

A. President. 
 

1. Shall preside at all meetings of the board and such other meetings approved 
by the Board, and have the authority to call for short recesses during meetings 
unless a majority of the Directors by vote oppose a recess. 

2. Shall serve as official spokesperson for the Board. 
3. Shall appoint such committees and other working groups as prescribed by the 

Board. 
4. Shall designate Directors or others to represent the Board at various meetings, 

hearings, and conferences. 
5. Shall perform such other duties as necessary to carry out the work of the 

Board. 
6. Shall perform such duties as prescribed by law. 

 
B. Vice-President. 

 
1. Shall serve in the absence of the President.  

 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
 APPOINTED OFFICERS 
 

Section 1.  Appointed Officers. 
 

A. The appointed officers of the District shall be a General Manager and a Secretary 
who may be the same person, but none of whom shall be a Director.  The duties 
of the appointed officers shall be as specified in law, and as directed by the Board. 
The Board may also appoint a Treasurer in accordance with.  

 
B. Pursuant to Water Code Section 34711, the District Board of Directors may 

appoint a District Treasurer, who shall be responsible for the deposit and 
withdrawal of funds of the District. 

   
C. The Board may appoint such other officers as it deems necessary. 
 
Section 2.  General Manager Duties.  
 
The General Manager is employed by the board to run the day-to-day business of the 
BVWD. 
 
Duties of the General Manager (Manager) include, but are not limited to: 
 



 

4 
 
1063903‐1 

A. Appraise and evaluate the effects of the Board policies and the manner of their 
execution, and the efficiency of BVWD personnel in terms of services rendered to 
the people of the District. 

B. Provide leadership to staff in identifying district needs, establishing priorities and 
determining the objectives, which will achieve the established goals of the 
District.  

C. Encourage and assist staff in the performance of their duties and encourage their 
professional growth.  

D. Ensure evaluation of personnel under his/her direction. 

E. Provide financial oversight of the District and Alpine County pursuant to funds on 
deposit at that agency.  

F. Lead the District management team in the preparation of an annual budget, 
control of expenditures, inventory control, program planning, changing priorities 
and public relations.  

G. Perform the function of the District’s Public Information Officer. 

H. Dispatch the contractor hired for operations on all wastewater problems in 
BVWD that require fieldwork.  The Manager will respond only if the situation is 
too complicated for the contractor hired for operations to handle. 

I. Keep the Board informed of all communications affecting the District. 

J. Establish regular office hours and ensure that there is at least one person in the 
office during those hours. 

K. Such other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Board. 

 Section 3.  Secretary Duties. 

A. The Secretary shall attend Board meetings and prepare the minutes of the Board 
meetings which shall record the aye and no votes taken by the members of the 
Board for the passage of all ordinances, resolutions, or motions. 

B. The Secretary shall prepare the agenda for the Board meetings, post agendas, 
public notices and proposed action documents as required by the Board and 
government regulations.  

C. The Secretary shall keep a record of all Board actions, including financial 
transactions. 

D. The Secretary is responsible for keeping the Ordinances and all changes. 

E. The Secretary shall maintain and file with the County Clerk and the Secretary of 
State the filings required under Government Code section 53050 for the Roster of 



 

5 
 
1063903‐1 

Public Agencies. 

Section 4.  Treasurer Duties. 

A. If a Treasurer is appointed by the Board of Directors, they shall serve at the 
pleasure of the Board and be responsible for those responsibilities set forth in 
Water Code section 34711 and any other as determined by the Board.       

 
  

ARTICLE VI 
 MEETINGS 
 

Section 1.  Regular and Special Meetings. 
 

A. The Board shall hold a regular meeting on dates and times as established by the 
Board from time to time by resolution.  All regular meeting shall be held at the 
District Office.  Such meetings may be altered as to date, time and place, as 
provided for in a Resolution adopted by the Board. 

 
B. Special meetings may be called by the President or by a majority of Directors. 

 
C. All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 
D. All motions made at Board meetings shall require a second to the motion prior to 

the Directors voting. 
 
E. Directors may attend any regular and special meeting telephonically as provided 

in the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 
 
Section 2.  Quorum. 

 
The Board shall be empowered to conduct the business of the District whenever there is a 

quorum of Directors at a properly noticed meeting.  Three Directors shall constitute a Quorum.   
 

Section 3.  Voting. 
 

A. The vote of a majority of the Directors present at any meeting attended by a 
Quorum shall be necessary to pass any motion, adopt any resolution, or make any 
determination.   

 
B. Voting shall be by voice, show of hands, or roll call vote. 
 
C. Should a Director vote “Abstain” on a motion, the vote shall be considered a non-

vote and not counted as an affirmative or negative vote. 
  
  



 

6 
 
1063903‐1 

Section 4.  Notice of Regular and Special Meetings. 
 

A. Notices of all regular and special meetings shall be pursuant to the Ralph M. 
Brown Act.   

 
B. Notices of regular and special meetings.  In the case of special meetings, the 

notice, written or by telephone, shall specify the specific nature of the business to 
be transacted. 

 
 
 ARTICLE VII 
 ELECTIONS 
 

Section 1.  Procedure of Voting. 
 
            All District elections shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures set  
forth in Water Code Section 35100 et. seq.   

 
Section 2.  Manner of Voting. 

 
 The manner of voting in all District elections shall be as set forth in Water Code section 
35003.   

 
Section 3.  Voting in Person or by Proxy. 
 
Every eligible voter may vote either in person or proxy in accordance with Water Code 

sections 35004-35006. 
 
 

 ARTICLE VIII 
 PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 
 
 Rosenberg’s Rules of Order, current edition and all future editions or such other authority 
as may be subsequently adopted by resolution of the Board is to apply to all questions of 
procedure and parliamentary law not specified in these Bylaws or otherwise by law. 
 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 PENALTIES 
 
    The penalty for any single violation of these bylaws shall not exceed two hundred dollars 
($200.00). 
  



 

7 
 
1063903‐1 

 ARTICLE X 
 AMENDMENTS 
 

The Bylaws may be repealed or amended, or new Bylaws by either of the following 
methods: 

 
(a) By four-fifths (4/5ths) vote of the total number of Directors as set forth in Article 

3 Section 1 of these bylaws and approval of the Board of Supervisors of Alpine County, or 
 
(b) By two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of the total vote of the District in writing or cast by 

ballot at a District election. 
 
 

















498 







































































































































































1202594-1 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A CREDIT CARD POLICY. 

WHEREAS, the Bear Valley Water District (“District”) staff use a District credit card 
from time to time regarding purchases for the District; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors for the District desire to adopt a Credit Card Policy 
(“Policy”) setting establishing parameters and procedures for the use of District credit cards. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Bear Valley 
Water District hereby adopts the Credit Card Policy attached hereto as Attachment A effective 
immediately. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors, at a regular meeting thereof, held 
on the ___th day of _________, 2019, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTENTION: 

Bear Valley Water District 

By:____________________________________ 
, PRESIDENT 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
, SECRETARY 

CERTIFICATION 

I,                                        , Secretary of the Bear Valley Water District, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution of the Bear Valley Water District 
duly passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors thereof held on the ___ 
day of _____________, 2019. 

Dated:  _______________, 2019 ______________________________________ 
, SECRETARY 

499 



 

 
 
 
1202594-1 

2

EXHIBIT “A” 



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Credit Card Policy – October 2019 
 

 
 

CREDIT CARD POLICY 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish procedures and provide guidelines for the permissible use of 
District credit cards when issued by the Bear Valley Water District.  Permitting authorized payments 
by credit card improves District efficiency in the Accounts Payable process saving the District time 
and money.  
 
The District credit card is a purchase card system benefiting the District and the District's authorized 
users by allowing purchases to be made from vendors for certain types of goods and/or services 
that are not available through other procurement means or where it is more expeditious or urgent to 
utilize the credit card.  To ensure proper control, the District shall limit the use of credit card 
purchases to those that meet the criteria as defined by this policy. 
 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
Usage of the District's credit card is allowed at the discretion of the District Manager or Office 
Manager to current employees who are granted District purchasing authority.  District employees 
must receive approval from the District Manager and/or Office Manager to have permission to use 
the District's credit card.  District purchasing authority governs the use of a District credit card as a 
tool for purchasing materials and services approved for purchase.   

 
The District credit card may be used only by authorized users who have authority to buy goods and 
services on behalf of the District. Each user is responsible for ensuring safeguard of the credit card 
information. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH POLICY 
 
Purchases made under this credit card policy and agreement shall comply with the District’s 
purchasing policy and only following approval by the District Manager or Office Manager.  The card 
user agrees to comply with all applicable District policies and procedures and this agreement. 
 
Use of the District credit card is restricted to the purchasing of those goods or services that cannot be 
procured through normal procedures. All goods and services purchased by the District should 
generally be acquired through credit extended by the District's vendors to the District whenever 
possible and paid by approved invoice within the agreed credit terms of the vendor.  
 
VIOLATIONS AND CONSEQUENCES 
 
Card user violations of this agreement or of any policy regarding the purchase of goods or services 
may result in any or all of the following actions, including but not limited to: written warning, 
revocation of credit card privileges, cancellation of delegation of purchasing authority, 
disciplinary action, termination and/or criminal prosecution.  
 
The District Manager and/or Office Director have the authority to determine whether a violation of 
purchasing or credit card policy has occurred and to determine the action deemed most 
appropriate pursuant to applicable law and/or District policy. 
 
Violations of credit card usage include but are not limited to: 
 

 Purchase of items for personal use 
 

 Use of the credit card for cash advances 
 
 Exceeding the credit card account credit line limit 



                                                                                                                           Bear Valley Water District  

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Credit Card Policy – October 2019 
 

 
 Purchase of items in violation of the District's travel policy  

 
   Failure to return the credit card when card user is reassigned, terminated or upon request 
 
 Failure to turn in packing slips, receipts or other back up documentation to the District  

              Office Manager within three (3) business days of the purchase 
 
 Sharing the credit card or card account number with unauthorized users 

 
OWNERSHIP AND CANCELLATION OF THE CREDIT CARD 
 
The credit card remains property of the District. It may not be transferred to, assigned to, or used by 
anyone other than an authorized user of the District. Users of the credit card are accountable for 
the activity on the card. The issuer or the District may suspend or cancel user privileges at any time 
for any reason. If the user is in possession of a card, the user will surrender the credit card upon 
request to the General Manager or Office Manager. 
 
RECEIPTS 
 
It is the responsibility of each credit card user to obtain transaction receipts from the merchant 
each time the credit card is used, including telephone and internet charges. These are to be 
immediately forwarded to the General Manager or Office Manager for review and ensure 
eligibility for payment. Failure to provide the required documentation for payment processing may 
subject the user to loss of credit card privileges and may cause the amount charged to be classified 
as a personal purchase by the card user. 
 
The District shall keep statement data and proof of reconciliation, including receipts and packing 
slips, on file for a period consistent with the record retention requirements of the law.  Failure to 
provide receipts and allow for timely payment of the credit card purchase will also subject the 
purchasing department to finance charges on the charge. 
 
DISPUTED ITEMS 
 
It is each user's responsibility to follow-up on any erroneous charges, returns or adjustments to ensure 
proper credit is given on subsequent statements. 
 
SAFEGUARDING AN ISSUED CREDIT CARD 
 
An issued credit card or card account number should always be treated with utmost care and 
should be kept in a secure location and protected from misuse by unauthorized users. When using 
the credit card for internet purchases, users should ensure that the site utilizes industry recognized 
encryption transmission tools. 
 
LOST OR STOLEN CREDIT CARDS 
If a credit card is lost or stolen, contact the Office Manager immediately, who will make contact 
with the issuer and take the appropriate steps to protect the account from unauthorized purchases. 


	BVWD October 21 2019 Agenda
	Agenda Item #1 - CPI-U Rate Increase
	Agenda Item #2 - Minutes_07_22_2019
	Agenda Item #2 - Minutes_07_22_2019
	Agenda Item #2 - Manager's Report - Minutes_07_22_2019

	Agenda Item #3 - Revised District Bylaws
	Agenda Item #3 -  Revised District Bylaws
	BVWD Approved Revised Bylaws - July 22, 2019

	Agenda Item #4 - SDRMA MOU
	Agenda Item #5 - Manager's Report
	Agenda Item #5 - Manager's Report
	Agenda Item #5 (2) - Permit Compliance
	Agenda Item #5 (3) - Other Items

	FINANCIALS SEPTEMBER 2019 FOR 10-21-2019
	Bear Valley Water District Audit Report
	Bear Valley Water District Mgmt Ltr
	Agenda Item #7 - Credit Card Policy
	BVWD Resolution Adopting Credit Card Policy(1312208.1)
	BVWD Credit Card Policy - October 2019


